OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
Peterborough, New Hampshire

CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL BOARD

Tuesday, November 6, 2007

SAU Office
7 p.m.
MINUTES
Board Administration
Mary Allen, Beverly Bacon, Richard Bergeron, Supt.
Stewart Brock, Ray Cote, Don Johnson, Asst. Supt.
Gail Cromwell, Butch Estey, Marian Alese, B.A.
Bart Goodeve, Dan Harper, Linda Potter, SpEd.
Craig Hicks, Arthur Knight, Dick Dunning, SMS
Mary Loftis, Bill McKinnon May Clark, DCS
Tom Welden Jeanie West, SMS

Gib West, GBS

Niki McGettigan, TES
Deb Lesure, AES

Sue Copley, PES

Sue Dell, CVHS
Pamela Matthews, BES
Chet Bowles, ATC

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance
Tom Welden called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

2. Minutes (Board Vote Required)

a. October 16, 2007 (Pgs. 1-26)
Mary Loftis moved to accept the minutes of the October 16, 2007 meeting as read. Butch
Estey second. Gail Cromwell abstained. All else in favor.

3. Public Comment

a. Paul Schlieben — Aviation Course Presentation
Dick Bergeron introduced Paul Schlieben as a person who has supported ConVal over the years
and is present tonight to speak about a proposal.
Paul said he is working on a project titled Grake-Off and GrowOwhich allows students to gain
aviation exposure.
Take-Off and Grow (TOAG) is a program where students perform community service and
accumulate hours in return. Students can convert hours to training hours. In addition, TOAG
sponsors rewards, events and outings. The hope is that students get excited about the future and
perform better in school. TOAG is a funding organization. Paul said that he has an interest in
helping high school students as well as aviation. Paul said that many opportunities exist in the
area of aviation such as piloting, aviation technology, air traffic control, etc. Paul said that aviation
is focused and well-defined, something many students need. The process involves an application
process, students are interviewed and recommended for the program, acceptance into the
program takes place, background checks are performed, students perform volunteer services,



hours are converted into training and lastly, students attend training in the area of aviation.

TOAG is asking for permission to advertise in school, conduct an Info session in school, and
conduct interviews in school. There is no financial request being made. It is privately funded.
Paul reviewed the website from a student perspective. It provided information on community hours
served for an individual student and the training hours available that it translates to.

Dan Harper asked how many hours of training a student would need to fly. Paul said that 10 15
hours is typical.

Gail Cromwell said that the opportunities for community service might be best suited to summer
time. Paul said that it could be done year round. Paul said that an agreement would be signed
that a student will improve grades and stay drug and alcohol free in order to participate in the
program. In addition, community service must take place. Both the parent and the student must
be interviewed to determine seriousness.

Ray Cote asked what Paul was asking for precisely. Paul said that he is asking for permission to
advertise and meet with parents and perspective students to offer this opportunity.

Bart Goodeve expressed concern with qualification for those that are asking for students to serve
community service. Paul said that those wanting students to serve community service must be
checked out first before students will be allowed to serve there. (See Attachment #1)

Tom Welden thanked Paul for coming tonight to present this opportunity. The Board will discuss
and develop questions and get back to him.

b. Howard Muscott —- MAST-NH, PBIS and Responds NH
Linda Potter introduced Howard Muscott, from the New Hampshire Center for Effective Behavioral
Interventions and Supports, who has been working with the ConVal District for over five years.
Howard said that he appreciates the opportunity to speak tonight. Howard said that it starts with
deciding what problems we want to overcome. A logic model for outcomes was presented.
History in this district relative to problem areas was outlined. Howard said that PBIS is a
framework to prevent and respond to problematic behavior. An extensive presentation was
provided. (See Attachments #2 and #3)
Mary Loftis asked if the social curriculum instruction takes place in individual classrooms or larger
meetings. Pamela Matthews said that at Pierce it was first taught in an assembly and then broken
down into smaller classrooms.
Tom Welden thanked Howard for his presentation.

Emily Rapp, CVHS Student Representative, said that the CVHS football team made it into the
playoffs for the first time. In addition, she said that the Cross Country team won the Class | meet.
Alex McGrath beat both the State and Meet records. The Cheerleading squad placed fifth this
year in competition. Winter sports kick off this week, try-outs are underway. In addition, a PBIS
survey was taken today.

Tom Welden thanked Emily for attending tonight and providing information.

4. Consent Agenda
a. NH Department of Education - Critical Shortage List (Pg. 27)
Information is included in tonight@® packet for informational purposes.

b. Tom Ryan — ATC Program Review (Pg. 28)
Information is Included in tonight® packet for informational purposes. Mr. Bergeron said that Mr.
Ryan was asked to come in to evaluate the ATC Programs and how the ATC might better meet the
needs of our students. Mr. Ryan will conduct class visits and make recommendations that will be
shared with the Board.



c. 2007 NHSBA Delegate Assembly (Pgs. 29-30)
Included in tonight® packet for informational purposes.

6. Superintendent’s Report and Presentation of Business
a. Request to Accept Donation (Board Vote Required) (Pgs. 31-33)
1. Dublin Consolidated School has received from the Garden Club of Dublin, a
donation of $100 for the purpose of the school garden
Butch Estey moved to accept the gift from the Garden Club of Dublin as read. Arthur
Knight second with gratitude. Unanimous.

2. Dublin Consolidated School has received from Lou King, loam, compost, shrubs
and plants valued at $362.24 for the school garden
Butch Estey noted that every year, Lou King, makes a donation to the Dublin school. His
generosity was appreciated.

Butch Estey moved to accept the gift from Lou King as read. Arthur Knight second.
Unanimous.

3. ConVal High School has received from Nicholas B. Kehoe, President B
Congressional Medal of Honor Foundation a book Medal of Honor: Portraits of
Valor Beyond the Call of DutyOfor the purpose of inclusion in the CVHS library
collection
Dick Bergeron said that this book was donated and that he in turn donated it to the high school.

b. Framing Budget — FY ‘09
Dick said that the SAU Administration is in the thick of looking to align big issues and develop
some common ground (See Attachment #4). Professional Development will be looked at. Don
Johnson said that the two days before school starts are used for meetings and one for a traditional
meeting with the entire staff as well as classroom preparation. In addition, a day in October exists
for staff development to attend an NEA conference or other workshop or attend school activities. A
district wide staff development day is not possible in October. In November, a workshop day is
scheduled that is used in lieu of parent/teacher conferences for elementary and middle school
staff. A day at the end of the year is used to clean and close up classrooms. This leaves one day
in January for staff development purposes. Dick said that this discussion will continue.
Contractually there are challenges.
Dick said that second, we need to prepare for a transition in our buildings and grounds
maintenance. Facility and Grounds Management requires ADA upgrades and requirements that
need attention and funding.
A Technology Advisory Committee Tasks will be developed, a five-year CIP facility/grounds needs
plan will take place,
A permanent Location for the Alt Program will be sought; we have a two year window to find a
permanent location for this program.
In addition, a new Preschool Autism Plan and Program is being developed. Lastly, the SAU
staffing has been holding the Administration to the fire with its costs.
Three interviews for the HR Position will take place on Wednesday evening.
Dick Bergeron noted that Contractual Notification to the CVEA regarding a potential Reduction In
Force decision must be made if it is a viable idea. Dick asked the Board to ask the Chair to report
this to the CVEA. Any reduction in force will first be accomplished by attrition, resignation and
retirements.



Dick said that our middle schools have wonderful programming but he said that there is an
opportunity to develop common expectations for the students of both middle schools. Also, the
Great Brook/Antrim Elementary school could be looked at as a campus to maintain efficiencies. A
multiN age approach is being looked at. Dick shared a Building Administration Theoretical
Construct with two models that might change the structure.

Stewart asked if the list was in rank order. Dick said that they are all high for a number of reasons.
Low priority items are those that should be reviewed.

Tom said that this will come back for further Board discussion. Decisions about the direction that
we would like our Administrative team to move in will be sought.

c. Monthly Events Calendar (Pgs. 34-35)
Beverly Bacon said that the Education Committee will meet on November 19™ at 7:00 p.m.
Stewart Brock said that the Communications Committee will meet on November 27" at 7:00 p.m.
Craig Hicks said that the Budget & Property Committee will meet on December 3" at 7:00 p.m.

7. Old Business

a. Adoption of Amended Policies (Board Vote Required)
Linda Potter said that the school nurses were working on policy JLCD and information will come
forward. Butch Estey said that nobody has come forward to let the Drug Policy Committee know
that the nurses were working on review.
Bart said that with regard to JLCD, the nurses can continue with their work, but a policy cannot be
referenced that we have not adopted. JLCD is not a current policy. Butch said that because policy
has to be on the table for thirty days, he recommended that JLCD be placed on the table and the
nurse@® information can be aligned with the Drug Policy Committee later.
Tom said that JLCD will be placed on the table tonight for thirty days. (See Attachment #5)
Butch Estey moved to table JLCD for thirty days. Bart Goodeve second to table JLCD for
thirty days. Unanimous.

Tom said that the tobacco policy from the State will be used as the policy we will vote on tonight.
(See Attachment #6)

Gail referenced page 41 of tonight® packet under policy JFCH-R. She said that the five bullets
puzzle her and she asked why they don®precede the elementary school information. One of the
bullets, beginning with Ghall be reported to the local policeEO is missing from the high school
procedures.

Butch said that it was a position error. Tom said that the sentence starting with OA student found
to have violated any part of this policy:Oand the five bullets to follow should be placed before the
Elementary and Middle School Violations statement. (See Attachment #7)

Butch Estey moved to accept policies JFCG, JFCHA, JICH, JICH-R as stated. Stewart Brock
second.

Mary Loftis asked for a summary of how the state policy differs from what is here.

Butch said that our policy was not as comprehensive as that of the state.

Butch Estey moved to accept the policies as Gail Cromwell amended. Bart Goodeve
second. Tom asked for those in favor of the policies as amended and that on page 41. All in
favor.

Tom thanked everyone who has worked on the changes and on this committee for over one year.

JFCG b Tobacco Use (Pg. 36)

JFCHA B Drug or Alcohol Treatment Records (Pgs. 37-38)

JICH P Alcohol and Substance Abuse (Pg. 39)

JICH-R P Alcohol and Substance Use b Violations and Sanctions (Pgs. 40-44)

PN~



Tom referenced a handout passed out by Gail for informational purposes. (See attachment #8)

Stewart has been working on goals and an evaluation tool for the Superintendent. (See
Attachment #9). Stewart said that the goal was to put together an evaluation tool to measure the
success of the Superintendent. Stewart said that leadership, culture, student achievement, Human
Resources Management, etc was the foundation for arriving at this tool. Stewart said that time
must be spent to think about what the Superintendent does daily, weekly and monthly. We must
be fair objectively. Stewart asked the Board to look at the text and review. He said that he would
like to set a mid-year review date and year-end review date. Stewart asked anyone with questions
to follow-up with him. Tom said that we want to accept Dick® goals. This will be brought back to
the next Board meeting.

Butch said that last year we voted to have Healthy Teeth go into the schools. He asked what
happened to this. Dick said that they are working in the schools with the exception of one.

Mary Allen said that we are doing the exams but asked where we were with the fluoride
treatments.

Bart said that the exams are taking place but that there was some question with the time needed
on the teacher® behalf.

Ray Cote directed the Chair to notify the CVEA with regard to a Reduction In Force. Arthur
Knight second. Unanimous.

8. Approval of Manifests (Board Vote Required)

Marian certified that manifests 48, wire trans, 49 through 58 totaling $1,792,657.97, Payroll 9
totaling $1,390,573.77 and Sub Run 108, 108.1, 109 and 110 totaling $296,610.42 have been
reviewed by me and found to be proper charges against the Contoocook Valley School District for
goods and/or services received and have been properly processed prior to their submittal to the
School Board.

Craig Hicks moved to accept the manifests as read. Butch Estey second. Unanimous.

9. Non-Public Session: RSA 91-A:3,lic

a. Negotiations
Dan Harper moved to enter non-public session in accordance with RSA 91-A:3,lic at 9:13
p-m. for the purposes of legal litigation discussion and three matters of negotiation. Roll
call vote was taken. Unanimous.
Craig Hicks moved to exit non-public session. Butch Estey second. Unanimous.

Craig Hicks moved to seal the minutes of non-public session. Butch Estey second.
Unanimous.

Craig Hicks moved to adjourn at 10:18 p.m. Butch Estey second. Unanimous.

Respectfully submitted,

Brenda Marschok



